Al-Qaeda/Hamas Financial Network Exposed

By: John Caylor

A secret United States government Immigration and Customs En-
forcement intelligence report obtained by Insider-Magazine.com expos-
es the Al-Qaeda/Hamas, worldwide terrorist financial network.

The interview and report conducted on June 15, 2003 with Islamic fi-
nancer Soliman Biheiri concerning the SAFA Group exposes important
facts believed to be previously unknown to the American public.

Among the treasure trove of secrets obtained from Biheiri; former New
Jersey Governor and subsequent 9/11 commission Chairman
Thomas Kean, profited $24 Million dollars in a 1987 real estate
land sale to BMI, BAIT UL MAL, Inc. a firm apparently set up to
fund future terrorist activities and promote the Islamic Brother-
hood in the United States.

Intelligence gleamed since September 11, 2001 has shown terror groups
are known for establishing relationships and implementing their net-
works years in advance.

It is particularly distressing to learn that Republican Kean, chairman
of the commission to investigate the largest terrorist attack upon the
United States personally benefited years in advance of the attack. Fail-
ure to disclose the transaction prior to appointment could conceivably
be construed as lobbying for the cause?

But, According to official agency reports the ongoing criminal investi-
gation by ICE agents in northern Virginia resulted in the conviction of
Soliman S. Biheiri, 52, on charges that he lied to federal agents about
his business deals with a top official from the terrorist organization
Hamas.

After just a few hours of deliberation, a federal jury in Alexandria, Va.,
found that Biheiri, an Egyptian native who ran an Islamic investment
firm in New Jersey called BMI, Inc., had engaged in business transac-
tions in the 1990s with Mousa Abu Marzook, a designated terrorist and
leader of Hamas, and had lied about those deals to ICE agents.



Federal prosecutors said that Biheiri had deliberately deceived ICE
agents during a June 15, 2003, interview in which he told agents he
had no business or personal ties to Marzook, after arriving at Dulles In-
ternational Airport on a flight from Cairo, Egypt.

At trial, ICE agents presented financial records and other evidence
indicating that Biheiri had engaged in at least $1 million worth of busi-
ness transactions with Marzook before and after Marzook was desig-
nated as a terrorist by the U.S. government in August 1995,

Court records also indicated that Biheiri invested some of Marzook’s
funds in real estate developments in Oxon Hill, Md., and other loca-
tions in the United States. Marzook had lived in the metropolitan
Washington, D.C., area before being deported from the United States
to Jordan by the legacy U.S. Immigration and Naturalization Service in
1997.

“Today’s conviction is an important step in our efforts to root out those
who illegally conceal their ties to known terrorists,” said Assistant Sec-
retary Michael Garcia. "By lying to ICE agents, Soliman Biheiri sought
to hide his business and social relationship with a U.S.- desighated ter-
rorist and leader of Hamas.”

Immediately before the trial, Biheiri pleaded guilty to a separate
charge of unlawfully procuring a U.S. passport. A sentencing hearing
for Biheiri is set for October 29. Biheiri was convicted of immigration
fraud last year and sentenced to one year in prison.

The case against Biheiri is the result of a long-term financial investiga-

tion into alleged terror financing operations in northern Virginia being
conducted by ICE agents, with assistance from the IRS and the FBI.

THOMAS KEAN LAND SALE OUTLINED ON PAGE 10 AS FOLLOWS:
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million in start-up capital provided by an Egyptian investor by the name of
FATHI TOLBA, He related that TOLBA resided in Saudi Arabia &t the time.
TOLBA's son, FATHI, served as the negotiator for TOLBA and ISMAIL, according
te B IRl stated that he/BMI helped to raise the capital

Ik _'—)
BIHEIRI related that he incorporated BMI, INC. in 1985 with his close personal
friend, HISSEIN IBRAHIM. He related that IBRAHIM was studying computer
science at Columbia University im New York at the time. The start-up-capital
provided to start BMI was provided by SOLIMAN BIHEIRI, IBRAHIM and MOHAMMED
BEHAIRY (his brother in Florida), according to BIHEIRI. BIHEIRI told the
agents that he himself provided $530,000, IBRAHIM provided $5,000 to 310,000
and his brother MOHAMMED provided approximately $50,000 to $70,000.

BIHEIRI related that in 1987, BMI arranged for the pur of $24 million
worth of land in the northeastern United States by and an
Saudi partneér. . The land was purchased from forme y Governon Ke
according to BIHEIRI. EBM] earned a three percent commission for arranging
transfer of money to the Kean family from TOLBA, according to BIHEIRI. He
related that BMI earned a total of $1.5 million, which was paid in staggered
increments. TOLBA had established several different companies, all named for
his children, to handle 6-7 different projects in the U.5., according to

BIHEIRI.

the

BIHEIRI related that he concentrated on attracting the investment money of
major banks, including the AL-BARAKAT GROUF, the REUWAITI FINANCE HOUSE and the
Gatar Bank. He related that the AL-BARAKAT BANK invested $500,000 into BMI in
late 15952 or early 1993. He stated that this investment was placed with BMI
LEASING. AL-BARAKAT subsequently began to invest 52 to $3 millfon a month
with BMI. BIHEIRI related that BMI did not have to provide AL-BARAEAT with
updates or operatIng prans for the monthly Dayments of $2 to $3 million, the
BARARAT BAME would automatically provide the money, no questions asked.

S i

BIHEIRI stated that BMI also signed an investmént contract with the GATAR
BANK, but no money was inwvested im the company, cue to the first World Trade
Center [WIC) attack in 15993. He told the agents that the EUWALITI FINANCE
HOUSE invested a total of $1.B m111ion with BMI in early 1993, but after the
WTC attack, all the banks withdrew their investments with BMI. ;

BIHEIRI told the agents that he met SULAIMAN AL-ALT inl%ES at a dinner in MNew
Jersey at the home of SHEIEH MOHAMMED AL-HANOOTI attemded by SULAIMAN AL-ALT,
HUSSEIM TBRAHIM and BIHEIRI. He related that AL-HANDDTI had invited them so
that they could meet one another. BIHEIRI had previously met HUSSEIN IBRAHIM
at a convention in Switzerland. BIHEIRI related that AL-HANOOTI was the
former president of the DAR AL-HIJRA MOSOLE in Falls Church, Yirginfa. He
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Details of Ifnvesticgation:

On June 15, 2003, at approximately 1345 hrs. SOLIMAN BIMEIRI arrived into
Washington Dulles Intermational Atrport on Swissalr fiight LX 3&.from furich,
Switzertand., BIHEIRI'S travel originated in Cairo, Egvpt on June 14, 2003,

Upon arrival inte the Immigration and Custams area at-Dulles, SIHEIRI was mot
by ICF Senfor Special Agents Kane and Moldowan., The agents identified :
them=plves and told BIHEIRT that whey would 1ike to speak with him after he
cledred Customs. BIHEIRI told the mgents that he would have no problem co
" speak with the agentsz, He asked i1Ff they wizhed to speak with him regarding
"someth g specific” or iF they randomly desired to speak with hRim.  Agent
Fane told him Ehat they wished to speak with him regarding "samsthing

specifis”.

Upen clearing Customs,. BIHEIRI and the agents proceeded Lo a conference room
in the Custess facflity at the afrport, where Agents Ksng and Balberohak (IRS)

proceeded to interview BIHETRT. The Intervicw began at approximately 1415
hrs.

The agents related that they were irvestigating w group of individuals and
prganigzations in the area of Northern Virginia that were suspected, among
other things, of providing financing to Islamic terrorist organizations,
worldwide. The agents related that they knew thet DIMEIRI was thne former
Fresident of BAIT UL MAL. IMC, (BMI) and that they were interested jn spezaking
o BIHEIRT sbowt the disposicion of money Chat mowed throuwch the company.

%

BIHEIRT acknowledged that ke was one of the founders and the President of BMI.
He related that he and HUSSEIN TBRAYTM formed the company in New Jersey in
1285, He rélated that 1% was a Minancial compeany that then branched inta
different industries, including read estate and leasing, BIHEIR] told the
agenbs bhab Ehey owst be fnterested in speaking wikh hie regarding the
relaticnship that BMI had with PFTECH, a corporaticn located 1n Boston,
Massbehusetts that is the subject of a current Fl:u:l.l::r'u‘l investigation t:-_'.r 1CE

and the FET 1n Bostom.

BIHEIRI went on to tell the agents that ne became invoived with FTECH through
OSAW TIADE. He related that TTADE, 2 Baston-based computer programmer, _
appreoached him in lake 1252, He teld the agents that ZTADE was tewing to form
& computer software company and meedsd an initial cepital investmont. BINEIRL
agreed to assist ZJADE jn acguiring the capital as Lest he could, he related.
EIAEIRI related that FTADE was In need of approximately 43 to $3.5 mi1lien

OQFFICILaAL USE ORNLY
[HIS DOCLMENT IS LOANED TO YOU FOR CFFICIAL USE OMLY GND REMAINS THE PROFERTY OF
THE US CUSTOME SERVICE. ANY FURTHER REGUEST FOR DISCLOSURE OF THIS DOCLIMENT OR
TREQEMATION CONTATRED HEREIN SHOULD BE REFERFED TO HMEADQUARTERS, US CUSTOMS
SERVICE TOGETHER WITH A DOFY OF THE DOCUMENT.



: - OFFICTAL USF DNLY

REFARTMENT OF THE TRERSURY
UNITED STATE:S CUSTOME SERVICE

Lad

t
i |
|

REPORT OF INV
N U

TIGATIONM
CONTI I

ON . REPORT MMBER: 090

ES
AT

T ———— =

dojlars bto start hi=z company, PTECH, A& few weeks later, BIHEIRT received 3
phone call from a person by the nawe of Sheikh YASEIM AL-0M0DI1 From Sawdi
Arabia, Iw safd. He related that he had never met or spokenm to AL-CADI before
this. He relaled that AL-QADI must have Tearmed of BMI through one of the
many advertisésents that he made in various Islamic newspapers and magarzines
around Tthe world. .

He related thet AL-ORDI was Jooking to invest $£3 to $4 mi11ion dollars in his
cnmpany, as that he heard that 1t was a well run Islamic investment company. .
BIHEIRT related thar he told AL-DADI of this prospective investnent ‘n PTECH
- and AL-QADT became very interested and invested approximalely $3 Lo $5 million
Inte PTECH, though BT, shortly thereafter. The worey went into a Kadi
International accownt at Bank of New York, then was transferred to Ptech,  The
signatories on the KADI INTERNATIONAL ococount were GAMAL AHMED and HUSSEIN
IORAHIM. BIHEIRI related that QADT Tnwested only this smoumt through BMI,
- although GANT ended Lup Investing approximately $10 million overall.  BIHEIRI
explained that BMI anly had a role in arrancing for the irmitial start-up
capital for FIECH from @ADT, and thereatter, QADI invested the rast of his

money intc PTECH directly through ZIADE,

BIHEIRI Telnted that BMI received & commisstian for this investmant by

GADT vip stock sharez in FTECH, which became worthless when PTLCH went
bankrupt & few years ago. BIFEIRI related that he kneéew that QADI invested _
approxirmstely £10 i1 fon total into FTECH through his close persomal friend,

« HISSEIN IBRAHIM. He related that he (BIHEIRIY and T83AHTM served on the board
of directors of PTECH when it wae cregted, jle related that JOROHMIM rerained
o The board antill PIECH went Sankrupt. He told the agents that IBERAHIM and
LIalE were the Founders oF PTECH, both conceptuwally and of Ticially. He sbaked
that TERAHIM was a computer programmer with a Phd from Columbia University 1n

Hew York.

He stated that I£I?J'I1IIH, lHke coth hiFselF pnd GAMaL AHMED, was Egyptlan bors
and had subzeguently cbtained U.5. citizenship. He related that IBRAHIM was
currently 1ivimg in Egypt. He stated that ISRAHIM was recently in the United
Staktes akbending the graduation of his daughter at the Massachusetts Institute
of Technology {MIT}. Tbrahim also had & son that graduated fram MIT,

BISEIR] told the agents that he has met CWAED on two cocasions, once at @
meeting Forr PIECH at One Harmon Flaza, Seacaucus, New Jersey, at the office of
EMI and another time in Sawdi Arabia.. He related that he believes that GADI
Is a very kind person and does not bheliewe the allegations nf GAJT heing A
supporter of bterrorism. He related that GAD] was extremely intelligent and
that he had studfed n Chicago and at Harverd University. He related that

GA0I ebtained a Phd n physies at Harvard
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He mtut that QADT u Saudi !nbi-n and comes from & very well known family
. in Saudl Arabia. He related that QADI'S wifs 1s from the JAMIOOM family. He
related theat .the QDTS father-in-law 1s the former finance minister of Saudi
‘Arsbia. He related that FMU JAMIOOM held that position for many years, He -
alzo related that the JAMIOOM family wes & wealthy and sducated werchant
family whoss nase wes 83 well-known in Saudl Arabia ms the names "MAHFOUZ® and
“AL-RAHIT®, BIMEIRI related that AL-QADI'S wother was & former Dean of thl
xing Abdul Aziz University n Jeddah, Saudi Arabia. He related that GADT was
alzo very close friend of KHALID BIN MAMFOUT, who owng & majority interest in
the MATIONA. (OMMERCIAL BAMC in Saudi Arabias. He told the mgemits that QADT
 used Ep work Tor the NATIONAL COMMERCIAL BANK and currently hl..'ll. close -

work ing nlltimip with the bank and EI-FI:I.II .

Whan 1nitially asked 17 he knew of any ﬂﬂl:ll controlled companies 1n the United
States, I =atd ha did not. The agents then asked him if he knew of a

GADI cosipany locaked in Mew Jersey. He sald he believed ‘that G401 did have

© one, But d1d not know its name. The agents then asked if he ever heard of

KADI ENTERMATIOMAL. BIHEIRI then stated that FADT INTERMATIONAL was the °
company and Ft was located in New Jersey. Biheiri sald that HUSSEIN TBRAHIM @ - -
arid HHH_ AHMED were signatories on the KADI INTERMATIONAL mccount and that

GAMA. AMMED'S mewi QADI'S nEmes were on the mt‘pmt.e papervork, but EIHEIRI'S

mmmtmthepapmnramum:

EII!I-I-IIH‘.I related that when he first met GADI, QAD1 wes Interested in starting
varigus investmsnt projects in the United States, inciuding a Teasing company,
a software company. and a rea] estate company. BIHEIRT related that he/BMI
meraged wonay for various QADT investments, including real estate investments.
He stated chak approximataly $5 million moved through the bank account that -
.BM] controlled forr EADI INTERMATIONAL for investment in Ptech. Whem asked how
the money mowed Into end ouk of the KADI INTERWATIONAL bank accounts, BIHETRI
related that QDT had control over those sccounts and that he (BIHEIRI) did
not know the mnswer to that.

‘BIHEIRT related that he believed that PTECH had been formed in the last six
months of 1993. He stated that he originally wet OSAMA ZLADE 1n 1992. He
arranged for the financing of PTECH by AL-DADT via BMI. He related that ZIADE -
was constantly in need of large smounts of money, and that ha (BIHEIRI} only i
. arvanged for the first tranch of %3 to %5 million dellars to be' invested by
AL-DANI. Ha related that AL-QADT ther dealt directly with FTECH and ZIIADE
from that point onsard.

BIHETRT described JTADE a2 & "computer genius".,  He related that both ZIADE
.and IBRAHIM founded the company, BIHEIRI related that QADI mgreed to pay
BHI/BIHEIRI & 3 to 5% cosmiszsion for setting up the original deal between him
and PTECH. BIHEIRI stated that he was l::nq}gnqn.tzd in PTECH stocks, :nh‘ll::h

OFFICIAL USE TJHL‘I'
mrsmmﬂnrsmmwrmwrxﬂmuxmvmnm-msmmwcr
THE U CUETOME SERVICE. AMY FURTHER REGUEST FOR DISCLOSURE OF THIS DOCIMENT OR
INFORMATION CONTATMED HEREIN SHOULD BE REFERRED TD HEADQUARTERS, US CUSTIMS -
SERVICE TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF THE DOCLMENT.



OFFICIAL USE ONLY

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASLRY il. FagE 5
I

UNITED STATES CUSTOMS SERVICE b
g : t? CASE NUMBER DOCO?FLOZCCO00S

'
1
]
i :
.i REPORT OF INVESTIGATION |
-4l CONTINUATIOCN |3, ROPORT NUMBER: (80
L]
]
3

-
-

ubsequently becase worthless, Bikeir] =ald he reported.th: PTECH stock
compenzation a5 Income on BMI Finance & Investsent's income tox returns. He
 stated that this was documentad and that the FBT mimt have the documents, ™

. B served on the o for —— .
approxcimately twee years, He stated that approximately $5 mi177on in
additional funds passed through KADI INTERMATIOMAL bark eccounts end on To
FTECH. He related that he was not sure 1F the U.5. KADT INTERNATIONAL bank
accounts were controlled by GAMAL AHMED or KADT hinself, but GAMAL AHMED'S end
HESEIN TERAHIN' 3 j:-:m the mccount As 5lgm;u~_iu_

BIHEIRI related that he left t.h.: board of FTECH due tc a Financial
disagreement he had with OSAMA ZTADE: BIMEIR] relsted that he wanted PTECH to
go public so 1€ could ebtain further and essier Financing. He related that

IIADF did not want the compeny to oo public and preferred to continue to ralse

Fivate e:qﬂtnl 1o

BIHETRT related that he and GAMAL AHMED had recefyed gmm:l Jury suopesmas tn

1999 to vestify in a Federal cowt in Chicage relative to an investigation ]
being conducted by the FRII, He related that rgﬁ_umu hid bhEsn cance]led - DJH:'
but that AHPMED had Bestified. Me related that the dinvestigation thet the FEI - " |.-

was conducting 2t the Cime was of AL-0AD], BIHEIRI slated that be Knew Lhatl

AL 00T wes suspected of funding the HAMAS terrorist oroup.  He releted that | (9%
QACT was syspected of providing money to an indivigual eornected to HWKS by — 1 1
the nase of MHAED SALAH, who Tived in Chigann,

BIMEIHI stared that he never served a5 & director of KADT INTERNATIONAL. He

" stated that only BAMAL AHMED served as a director. BTHEIRI told the agents
that he kniw TARED SIMETDAN (a.k.a. SWEIDAM, SUMATCEN, SWAIDAND only in
passing, He EGTW Whe Baents that he had met SUWETDAN ot an Islamic
conference, and had subveequently een him at t=o or three others. He related:
that they were all ISHA (ISLANMIC SCCIETY OF NORTH AMERICA) and MAYA (MUSLIM

AReE YOUTH ASSDCTATTONY comferences.  He stated that be did not know or r.I.-l.'I. _—
with SIVEIDAN on a personal or business leval. A A

el :|:' fr G’L‘
When asked W he krew FRF agentl GaMal ARCEL HOFED) BIHEIR] became wisibly
nervews, He eock his time in re guestion, He then related E‘-'I'I.-"'«"' !
Ehat he did know HAFEL. He related that ke once met HAWFEZ =t an AMERICAN

MELIM CXMCIL conference in either 1599 or 2(00. He reloted that HAFEZ was

at the conference with Ey_%_dum_nf% wht was giving a

lecture at the confersnce. e told the agents that he wat introduced ta HAFEZ

and shock his hand, but that wes the First ind last contact that he =ve- nad  B/S[ ot ,
with HAFEL. He itatud that the entire Puslim community was very proud of

HAFEZ, because he was the first Muslim FBL agent. He related that FAFEZ was

Egypefan born and ther bacawe a naturaiized U.S. citizen. bHe related that

HEFEZ wat formeriy & translator,
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BIMCIRT related l:h.u.e former project manager for BMI REAL
ESTATE, from 1988 unt d on, was a close friend of WAFEL and that they
had grown Lp together in Egy]:lt.‘ ‘He sLated that Lhey moved Lo Lthe U.5. from |
Fgypt at about the same Cime. A3BAS AHVED also nttindud the mnfarm-:a and

that's how BIHEIRI met HAFEZ, Eli:ﬂnr‘ding to BIHEIRI.

BIHEIRE rnTul:rd that ht knew. mm&m ALAMOUDT.  He related that ALAMOUDE
was Lhe former head of the AMERICAN MUSLIM COUMCIL (AMC)., He related that
Al AMOUDT resigned his position after criticism from the' other AMC directors
and members regarding his support of Ig:'lm“ic: extremist movements amd Jihad

movenents in Bosnia and Chechnya, among others. BIHEIRI related that he
himse!f served as a board member of the AMC and thet he believes that he sti11

is a board member. He related that the AMC Invested a btota) of approximately -

$10,000 to £15,000 fn BMI over the years. He stated bthat BMI returned 1:11:
initial Investment with a minimal prn‘l'!t

BIHEIRI reienced that ﬂ-ﬂﬂl fnvested & total of approximate }y'ﬂlmﬂlim into
BEMI LEASING PARTMERSHIF, INAC, and approximately $1 to 52 m11vio0 into BML HEA.I_
ESTATE DEVELOPMENT, INC., BIHEIRI steled thal he has never. associated wilh nrly
known Lermorjfzsts -r.'rr‘ Islan‘lﬂ extremist groups and/or TndiuiduaTE

He =stated that he had h-urd of MOHAMED SALAH, but had mever met him nor had
any businesz relationship with him. He related that no one at BML had s
relationship with him efther. He stated that no money had Deen sent bto SALAH
© from BMI {amd associated companies) and that BMI (and assoclated companies)
-had never fnwested/managed money for SALAH. He also. stated that BMI had never
managed any money for the HAMAS terrorist organization or any of its members.

EIHEIRI knld l:hE agents that the f'll.ELIM ARED YOLMTH ASSEEIATI&'H‘ (MAYA] had
invested n BMI and also pierchased a building throwgh the cowparny. He related
Lhat MAYA was basically one and the same organization as the HNORTH AMERICAN

" ISLAMIC TRUST (NAIT) and the ISLAMIC SOCIETY OF NORTH AMERICA (ISNAY. He
related thak the bulilding that MAYA purchased from BMI was located in Indiana,
near where MAYA's mein office iz currently located, He stated. that BMI° REAL
ESTATE DEVELOPMENT [BMI REDI) bullt the h'l.l'll‘ll:l‘lng BIHEIR]I related that he was

a member of MAYA.

BIHEIRI stated tn the agents that he never handled cash at BMI. He related
that he would only deal in payments in the form of check or wire transfer. He

related that the same went for a1l of the other employees/directors at 8MI,
including h¥s brothers. BIHEIRI stated that he had never conducted a cash

transaction of $£10,000 or more end has never had a Cash I‘!In;ﬂl:t.‘IDT‘- Report
{CTR} Tiled for him on his behalf.
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rh-mla.ud that h.‘hiﬁ four brothers J:y the names cf MOHAMED, S8MT, AHMED and
SALAH, He related chat MOHSMED f=2 a cardiologint in Florida, S8HFED is a
triple boarded physicien fn Michigan, S&8M1 15 & phawsician Th Eg'_-.rpt and 5LAH
iz urrmtlg.' Mwing in Florida.

BIHEIRT stated thakt SALAH. joined BMT 1n 1991 as on hnmmtant m:rtirg undsr
GAMAL AHMED. He related that SALAH Teft the company in 1995 snd wens Back ko
Eqypt, where he worked with SAMI, who was 1iving there as well. BIHEIRI saild
that SALAH came back to Florids betwsen 1999 to ZX01. He stated that SJI.LFI.I'I ¥
never conducted transeetions for or on behalf of 8MI.

BIHETRI stated that his beother SAM] incorpiratsd & company by the name of
GG TRADE INTERMATIONAL in MNew Jersey im 1387. He related that this
COmANY WBE BN exportes of textiles to Egwpt. He related that this company
_did business with BMI o the late 1330s, but did not have any success. He
refated he (S(LIMAMY and SAMI also fncorporated BMI TRADE, INC., but the
tuvsiness was short-11ved and no money passed through the ﬁl’.‘l.'}l:l'I.l'I'Il'.E set wp in
1ts name.

BIMEIR] related that MUSSEIN IBRAHIM currentiy hes & software corpany - 1n Egypt
that sel s, among other Lhings, PTECH softwere. He stated that TBRAHTM used
to work for the-U.5. Defense Department. He related thak GAMA AHMED 45 sl:lll

working as an acoountant in Mew Jersey.

Agent Kame then asked BIHEIRI how BMI was con zed and foroed, BIHEIRT
related that be wenl W high schoo ol lege in Switzerland™ He said that
he sarned graduate degrees In econom ties of

Fribowy and furich. He relaced that he met MAHTID ABL SEED and C8Ma ATTTA

wille dn Switrerland.  According s BIHEIRT, GAWE=ETTIE 752 cousTh of

AIHEIRI s mother. | related thekt ATTIA and SAUD are the fathers of the

nodern Islamic banking svstem. He related thet ATTIA'S wuncle was the first

person b0 develop Lhe concept of Izlamic banking (IE: no Anterest bankingl.
e e

EIHEIRT related that ATTIA was the conceptual crestor of the TSLAMIC
CEVELOPMENT BANE (TDB), which was the first [sismic bank erd was incorporated
In Jeddab im 15079 It 8126 has an of fice in Copenhagen, Denmark. He related
that the Intermational Jzlamic Bank (11B) was conceptualized in 1981 by GAMAL
ATTLIA st 1ts office In Lusenbourg, but its headguiarters and operational office
wag in Dermark, IIB was the first Islamic bank headquartered 1n Furope.
BIHEIRI relaied that the structure of Jslamic bamking was conceptualized by
ATTTA and ABL! SBIN ak & dimnesr in Seitzecland in 1378, DBIHEIRI stated that
ATTIA was a senfor mewher of the MUSLIM BROTHERHIID (MB) and was Egwpllian. He
related that ATTIA wrobte the by-Tews for Lhe EURAIT] FINAMCE HOUSE and the
Bank of Dubaf, Tn 1982 and 1979, respectively, He Felated thet ATTIA wes
#t11] mlive, mnd be believes that he s Tiving fn Cafre, He told the seents
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that ATTIA'S father, AZER, was & well-respected csiamic scholar in the Midele
East.. He related that ATTIA was recently & professor of Egyptian Taw at &

‘university In Qatasd, He related that ATTLA'S son, POHIELDIN ATTIA, 1s

currently 1iving . in the United States and working for AHMAD TOTOMJI, HISHAM .
AL-TALIB and JAMAL BARIINJI at 555 Grove Strest, Herndon,. Virginia.

BIHEIRI relaked that the .J0B was originally capitalized by the MINLSTRY OF .
TSLAMIC AFFAIRS of KLMAIT (25%), SULAIMAN AODUL AZIZ AL-RAJHL (5%), FAISAL
SANE and AL BARAKAT, as well as & group of other wealthy Biddle Eastern

- merchants. Swbsequently, be related, AL-RAJHI purchased a controlling

Interesl 'n Che bank along with FATSAL BANK and Bl BARMKAT, who currently
control 1k, Lo the best of his kncsledge.

According bo BIHEIRT, he (BIHEIRL} was irnvited to mest with ABU SAUD and ATTIA
i Luxgabieurg in 1981, At this mewbling both SAUD end ATTIA advised him to ge
to the United States and establlich an [sTamic financial corporation to take
advantage of both the IsTemfc money in the United States and the frecdom of

e operabion of the (L5, financial market, BIHEIRT sald. BIHEIRT relsted chat

SAD was alse & cenfar sdwher and board memher of che FUGLIM BROTHERHODD.
S0 becwmwe famonus For ariting the First book on Islemic econoalcs, BIHEIRT
related that the three of thew all believed Ligt opening a3 financial cospany
in.the United States would afford tham more frocdor ©f GIFFRETon then in

of Lhe Middls Faetern cogntries, due to the fact that mast of the Miﬂ']';lrhi

Easbern ppunbries were controlled by sfither morarchies or dictatorships.
e e . -

ol ———

T

Be gave a2 expmple of the | gedon of Sawdl drablan Institutions, the
fact that FAISAL FINANCE. il AL-FAJHI B&MK could not take any
specific "new™ petions wi approval af Eing Fahd. He ralated theat by

establishing an American Financial compeny on U5, =o0i1, they would hawe the
freedom ©o do 3t they pleased regarding business activity, he would Just have

to “follse SFC guidelines”. Wwhen Agent ane gsked 3 .

W
had him (BIHEIRI) cpen wp EM] 35 @ RITHERHOOD finan f fon, -
BIHETRT sta rela and ATTI& only wanted

to hETp BIRETRT Trirts HmanETaT endeavors ond tl'rnugrlt that esteslishing BMI
in l:h-l: Lnlted States would Be & g5sd idea.

BIMETRT related chat &80 SAMD Invested $500,000 o his own mongy Into BMI
LZAZING o the wid-1380a. He related that this momey was returned-to his
withow at SAUD'S death In the mid-159%=

BIHETRT told the agents that YOUSSEF MNADA, GHELED HIMMAT h;;!!ﬁﬂ.lﬁﬂﬂﬂl"
had na irvelvessnt with the eftabTizhaent or Theration of . He related
that ke had sebt NADA on three occasions. He related that he krew his becouse

they both Tived In Switzerland at the sane time. He related that they first
met AT an Islaaic confererce in Switzerland. Shorbly thereafter, SAD Invited
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him to weet with NADA, HIMMAT and MASIEDOIN at RADA'S home tr Camp jone
d'ltai®s. BIHEIRI teld the agents that the purpose of the reeting wes simply
to mest MADA, not for any specific busitess propositicons. BIWEIRI seid that
he met HIMMAT whenever he met MADA, becaise they wers always together,
BIHEIRT relsted thet NADA was & very successful Egyptisn businessean. Hes
related that MADA'S home In Camplone cost 12 mil11on Swiss francs when he
origirally purchazed 1t In the Tate 19708, He relaked that he saw MADS again
at @ second conference and after that he only spoke with him on the phone
three or four times after that. Me related that he has no ongoing .
relationship with NADA. BIHEIRI related that he d'd not have any Jrvolvement
with BANK AL-TADWA, NADA'S bank 1n.the Bahamas, and that MADA never fnvited
him inte the bank., He alse stated thot he never had any sccounts at AL-TADWE
and never transferred any money to NADA, HIMMAT, NASREDDIN or any of their
oueinesses or banks. : = . _

BIHEJRT related that when e original 1y interscted with MWADA and his
associates, he did not kegw that NADA-and “Framinent easmbers of the

MECTF ERUTREFACDD, mmﬁm ey asseciat]on with
hie and his partners. BIHEIRT related thet MADA mdvertised A -TADWA 35 &

"Islamic bark®, bUt that n Feality, Tt was nothing but an offshore bank. He
sald that he did oot know of any Information Indizating t AL-TAMA wax

ut!Tired by, or supported HAMAS, the PALESTINIAN ISLAMIC JIHAD, AL-DAEDA or
ary other terrorist organizations.

ETHEIRT relaced that he knew KHALDOUM DIA-EDDIME, 2 former emloyvee of
AL-TAHA. He related that DIA-EDODINE was merried to HIMMAT'S daughter.
BEIHEIRI related that DIA-EDDINE had an engineering degree from a Swiss
uluersity vl that he Toft A -TARA t3 work for Purich Insurance, a Swiss
Insurance sgency, where he 51977 works todsy.

BIMEIRT related that he only SAMIR the DR AL-HIJR&H MOSCIE,
where they both used to pray. He t SALAH wan the forasr president
of the masque. He related bhakt SALAH used to work Som the SARR SOLRDETION.
He related that he alzp met IBRAHTH HASSABALLA st the D8R BL-HIJ%84. H¥
ralated that HSSABALLA used B work st 555 Grove Street with TOTOWIT, SALAH,
FL-TALIB and BARZINIT. He statec that he did not have a personal or business
relationship with efther HASSABSLLA or SALAH. He related that nalthar of two
Indivicuals had Invested noney in BMI or moved momew through BT

BIHEIRI told the agentz that he criginally came to the United States in 1985,
shartly after sbtaining his econcnice degree in Switzerland. He relazsd that
he first 1ived with his brother SAMT in New York. He related that he first
began working for CAMBRIDGE COMPUTER, 2 Boston-based software corporation
owned by NASSER TSMAIL. who alsa served a5 its president. BIHEIRI related
that CAMBRIDGE COMPUTER was established in Boston with spproxinately £2.5
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million in start-up capital prowided by an Egyptian inwestor by the name of
FATHT TOLEA. He related that TOLBA vesides in Sesdi Arsbis st the time, ©

TOLBA*s son, FATHI, served as the negotiater for TOLBA and [5Fd ng
=" IRT stated that he/BNI helped to ralse tha caplical

B I related that he incorporatsd BMI, INC. in 1985 with hiz closs pErschal

friend, WSSEIN. IBRAHIM. Me reloted that IFRANIM was studying computer
sctence at Colusbia University in Mew York ab the Lime. The start-up-capital
provided to start BMF was . provided by SOLTMAN BIHEIRI, IBRAMIM dnd

BEHAIRY (his brother im Floridad, according to BIHEIRT. BIHEIRT told the
agents that be hiesalf provided §50,000, TBRAKIM srovided $5,000 to $10,000
and hiz brother MHAMMED provided approximately $50,000 to £70,000.

- BIHEIRT related that in 1R8T, BMI arcanged for the p of §24 m11Vjon

worth of land Wn the northeastern ihited States by ond ar
Zavdl partner. . The lord was purchas:d from f ;
according to BIHEIRI. BMI carmed & chrds percant commission for arcenging
transfer of soney En the Kean farily F-om TEBA, according to BIMEIRI. He
reiated thaz fMI sarned & total of $1.5 willdon, which was paid in stepgered
imcrements, TOLHA had estabilshed several differemt comsanies, al) neeed for
hig children, bto handle 6-7 different prolects n the U.%5,., eceording to

BIKEIRI,

BIHEIRD relat#d that he concentrated on atiracting the irvestment noney of
major bamks, Tncludlng the AL-BASAKAT BROLF, the FKINATITI FINANCE HOUEE and the
Hatar Eank. He related that the AL-BARBEAT ERN< ‘nwested $500,000 into BT 1n
late 1992 or early 1593, He stated that this investrent wes placed with BH)
LEASTNG.  AL-BARAKAT subsequently Beghn te inuest £2 o £3 afi1iom o montk
with BMT BTHEIRT related that 891 did not hauve to provide AL=BERAKAT with
updates o opeTACI] FTans T0r Ehe ronthly pauments of ¥ XYy ATl Tion, the
m wouild avtomiicalTy provide Liw morey, ne guestions asked,

——

BIHEIRY =teted that BMI-a'se sigred an investrent oontract with the DATER
EANY, but no money was fnvested in che company, due to the first Workd Trade
Center (WTCY attack im 1993 He tald the agents thet the KUWAET] FTMANCE
HOUSE inwvesced s eotal of $1.8 million with BRI e eerly 1993, but after the
WIC attack, all Lhe banks withdrew thelr investrerts with BMI. .

BIMFIRI told che agents that he wet SULATMAN AL-ALT inl5B5 at & dinner n New
n]'l!‘l'“l!_'.l at the home of SHEIXH POHAMMED AL-HRNCOTI attended by SLLAIMAN AL-ALL,
HUSSEIN TBRAHIM and BIHEIRT. He related Lhat AL-HAMOOTI had invited them se
that Chey ¢ouwld sest one znother. BIBEIRTY had previcusly met HUSSEIN IBRAHIM
et a comvention in Swiczeriand., ATHEIRD related that AL-HANCOTT was Che
former president of the DAR AL -HIJRA MOSOQUE fn Falls Church, Virginfia, He
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related that AL-HANOOTI was an Egypllan naliona). AL-ALT was working for the
Sawdl Arablan government, BIHEIRT sald. He releted that AL-ALT was attending
n two-month Eradining somewhere in the United States at the Lime.

BIHEIRT told Uw agents that che rext tire he saw AL-ALT was in approximacely

1989 at a MAYA confersnce that he believes took place in either Texas or

Kangas. At this Eime, AL-BLT told GIMELIRE thal e was in Lh process of

noving back to the Unfted States to open an of fice of the INTERNATIONAL

ISLAMIC RELIEF DRGANTZATION (TTRD) for the MUSLIM WORLD LEAGUE (MWL), which

are both Saedi charitles, according to BIMEIRI. BIHEIRI told Lhe mpente that

the IIRO is a subsidiary of the ML, worldeide. He staced that the teo
organizations are almist pacirely finacced by the Ssudi drabipn government. o

shortly after the conference, AM-MT care t0 @ meerirg with BIHEIAT, rﬁrﬁf
AHFED wnef HEBSETH TBRAHIM in Mew Jersey, according to BTHEIRI. BIMEIRI
related that AL-ALT told them at the eseting that he was to receive 310
Aiilion dollars from an organization by the name of SANABEL AL-KHEER in Saudi

“aki stated Uhal SANABEL was a subsidiary of the T AL- m £a
gee IF BMI could Bnwiest the mormey for SANABEL , sccordirg o OEWCIRT, BOEIR]
and TRROHIM Eold AL-ALT thar they could do that for him and the money began to
arrive From SANOBEL, shortly thereafter, BIFEIRT related. The [ncooee
girrrated by SAMABEL 's Investment wes to e used €9 oower The fxperses of the
TIRO affice dn tha United States. BOIMEIR] noted that THE SAMA-BELL, ISC, in
the L5, and TARSBEL AL FHEER fn Saudl Arabia were really nne and the cams
argant 2at len,

BIHEI?] told the agents that that 43 million collars come inta the warlous BM]
entities from SANA-BELL . He related thet &1 =4119om come tnto BHT LEASTNG
pondk ascounts bheough SARAEEL {Seuei drabial, %1 mi1liom came into BRI REAL
LSTATE DEVELOPMENT thrcwgh SAMABEL {Sawdi Arebia) and ancbther #1 million came
into another accomt directly from TIRD for thp purchase of Tand in the Uniteod
Swabes. RIHEIRT told the agents that [BRAHIM dealt with AL-ALL more than he
did. He related thae he (BIHEIRD) wouTo ContSet e TtheT AL-ALI or his Syrian
el |H§l.-!t- FHALED MOURE, at Lhe IISD in 'l.l"irgfrli.!-. whgn i needed to soeak
about the SANA-BFLLATIRD Inwestrents. He related that GAMAL AHMED wag the
person who Bandled most of Ehe accomt Transfers fromdfor the [EROSANA-TELL
He relabed that AHED was phe fadivhduall at DML thet demlt with 8120 T and

NOLRD mosL frequent iy,

BIMEIR] rold the agents that AL-ALT ran inio trouble because he began pulling
money cub of the SWNA-BELL {nwestwents to pay his persenal B1112.  AL-AL) was
2150 having trouble meeting the expenses of the 1RD office in the United
Suates, =0 b ashed BIHEIRI for eorey from SANABEL's irvestwent in BRI to
cover IRO'S ppenses.  He seaced that 8L-801 had approxinmately twentv-seven
peaple working for him and thersfore had many bills to pay.
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BIMEIR] related that In August 19398, ke wos contocted by a representative of
Sanabe] (feud] Arablial regarding a panding Yaw sult against hiARe™F and AL-8 !
by SAMNABEL. The representative informed him that AL-ALT was not suthorizsd &
act on pehalf of SANARFL, BIWEIRT was surprised by this rnews because he

thoight that AL-ALT was rapregsenting SAMABEL (Sewdi Arabia) end did not find
sut until then (T598) that M. m:mtmﬁ tha representative for SANMBEL. _
When he tried to contact AL-ALT, he found out that hrmcmut-mm__

accurdim te BIHEIRT, He told the agents that he obtained AL-ALT*S telephone
number in Saudi Arabla and contacted him thers. He tald the ngents that
A-AT told him thae he (AL-ALT} was coming back to the LS. shertly and they

wollld resolve everything upon his retwm.

BIMEIRI told the agents thal at the bime, b, SL-ALT, BMI LEASING and BMI REAL
EZTATE were possibly going to be sued by SANA-BELL in Maryland for the mizuse
of their investoent funds. LUpon the return of AL-ALT Lo the United States in
fuguet 1950, a meeting was arranged ot the ofFfces of MAR-JAC TWMVESTRENTS
Tocated ab 555 Growve Street, Herndon, Virgirda, BIMETRT related, Present at
this mecbing wore YAUR MIRZA, the ~ep-esentative of SANA-BELE in the United
States, v SAATE, the directer of the ML in Hew York Cliiy. AS0D0LAH
AL=CBa00y, the dirscbor of the &l in Saudi Arabis. HASSN BAHAFZALLAH, the
director of SWW-RELL AL-KHEER in Szudl Arabia, BIHEIRI amd AL-ALT. Nate:
ETHEIRT related that Bahatzallah s Aow deceased

Ar firar, BTHEIRT related, the ather individuals did mob went S -817 preseit.
for the mtfting, but he inshsted thet AL-AL1 attend, and AL-AL] uitimately
attendsd the mesbing. At the meebing, AL-ALT told everyone pressnt that he
alone wai responsible For any mismaragement of SAWNA-BELL frvesteent funds, not
BIHEIRT. according to BIFEIRT. BIMEIRI told the agents that BAHAFZALL AH was
very angry with AL-MLT and shouted at him, accusing him of stealing money.
BIMEIRT relaled Lhat AL-ALT hesams vary belligerent at that point and begen
shouting back ac RAMAFZALLAH, and demanded an apoiogy from him.  According to
BIHETRT, ar that paipt, AL-0BAID stood up and related that the meeting had not
gone the way he would have Tiked and said that he would 1ike te terminate the
meeting. BIMEIRT related that AL-A_[ then stormed oul of the office and the
r2ebing ended. DBAID then told BIHEIRI they would deal with AL-ALT Tater,

Abcur 10 days lacer, BEHETRT, BMI and AL-ALI were officially sued by
A-EZLL, BIHETRT related Ehak ab Ehe time oF the law suit, SL-ALT had
alreacy Teft Hhe country and wos besching at a university in the United Arab
Emirates, The suit ended with a Fudgment fn favor of SAMABEL for
epproximately £2 nlllfon, The jSudgment was never paid by AL-ALT, BLHEIR], or
EMI.  RIMEIRT =aid SANARFL carnot collest secause BMI and BIMZIRI are
Pankrupt .
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BIHEIRI found Y& very stranqge that SANABEL stated that they had no idea whet
Han acciwring with thelr investments at BMI, because for bws and a half La
three years leading up bo the Jaw suft, he (EIMEIRI) had been sending a
{-annual investeent report on SANRBEL'S finvestment to YAQUR MIRZA at 555

ove_street, Hermdon, VrgInld Tat AL ACI S FEquUest) at the same time that he
wat sending a copy to ALCALT/TIRD at 360 SoUth Wishington Street, Falls
Church, Virginfa. BIHEIRT satd he thought MIRTA was & consultant to MUSLIM
WORLD LEAGLE 1MW) andsor SANADEL. BIHEIRI thought AL-ALL was in cherge of
SANMEEL '%/TIRD's frwestments. BIHEIRT told the agents that be believed that
iz was impossible for MIRZA and S8NA-BELL not to know of the detafled status
of BANA-BELL'S investment with BMI, BIHEIR1 sald that prior to the Tawsult,
MIRZA rever called bo ask abowt SARMABEL 's investaents oF aboat troansfers of
rorey between BMI and SANAAEL. BIMEIRT =stated, *Where was he (MIRZA) curin
all thess * He also tald the agents that hmmbﬂi'ilr'ung_uﬂ:l%t

opened wp the of fice of the INTERMATIONAL I1SLAMIC RLLIEF ORGANITATION

(ITRO} §n the Inited States as the "INTERMATIONAL RELIEF DRGANIZATION" {IRD).
BIHEIRT tald the agents that AL-ALI'S IRD was one and the same organizatlion as
the JIRD in Sawdi Arab id-ZHr rétated that he suspecied that the TIRD'S U.S. -
of fice had been delfberal®ly named the IR0, so that ooe could not make the
connEction between the twn Argen et ions.

BIMEIRI ®old the agenes that the only odf transection that he could remesber
surrounding SANA-BELL'S investments with BMI wes on ong occasien when AL-ALT
requested a £10.000 o 15,000 payrent made out 1o a persona’ accomt of his
in Saudt Arabiz, rather than the I90D.  BIHFIRT related that CAMAL AHMED told
AL-ALT that BMT could not Tegally trancfer SANA-BFLL'S Toney to A personal
apooamt of AL-ALT. & -80T then provided aHMED with & signed letter from
SANA-BELL, awthecifing the transfer. according to BINEIRI.

BIMEIRT rerlated that besides this payment, Uw only vther payments that he
ppde frow B to AL-ALT were In the nome of the IRD. He rplated that he found
It rldiculous that MIRZA ard SANA-EELL would ascusc him of Investor Fraod, e
related TN wWhon SAMASBELT opened 1t investzent Atcoumts with [M1T “he -
received of f BCial documentation avthorizing the Snvesteert from SENA-RCLL

M -FHEER in Saudl Arabia, indicating that AL-ALl was their representative in
che W5, and Chat he wps aubharized Bo éonduct branfactions for SANA-BELL .
BTHETRT related that in licht of this avthorization, he should nob be Tound
crimingily Viable for transfers regquested by the representatives of the IRD

and SANA-BELL i che W%,

ETHEIRT related that AL-ALT was in California a short tine after the SANA-BELL
eeeting and that he believeo That AL-MLI was then ordered ©o roturm To Sawdd
Arabia, where he was put §n prisen for one year for the S0A-BFLL affatr.

REHEIR] relakad that AL-8L1 wes a bad msrages snd businessran, He ~&lated
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that AL-ALI would come Eo him with business propocals thet he (BIHEIRD) Found
ridiculots. ATHEIRI told. the agents that one example of such a ridiculous
investzent was when 8 -0 7 approached him in the mid-1530s régarding a
prozpective 3] million investment into & newly designed chemical that was
alleged bo decrease Uw drag-coefficlent of potrolewn diring pipeline
bransportat!on.

The product was allegedly desfgnsd by o Jordanian who had a PR in clenisiry
Iwhose name be cannot recall), BIHEIRT related that AL-ALL came to hinm
pushing BIHEIRIZBMI Lo endorse an inwestment Into the product. The 3! millicn
progpective invesleent was on behalf of somsone el (not AL-ALL'S moneyd,
accordimg to BIHEIRI. BIHEIRT told the agents that AL-ALE told GIMEIRI that
I beifeved that Tt was a good fnvestnent and asked BIHEIRI if he agreed.
*BIMEIRT told him that he should not Invest 31 million fust Vike thet, but that
he should get a chemist to analyze the product to First determine 1 it truly
was what It was purporied to be, he said. He then told the agents that AL-AL7
made the wnvestment anyway, ageinst his adwice. BIHEIRI related thot BMT did
not erdorde or invest in the prodect,

BIMEIRT related that the $1 miilion investment =05 sent to GLOGAL CHEMICAL. a
chemical company operated by a Libven ratione) in Chicage, BIHEIRT Lol Lhe
agents that 3] @illicn was invested by one person and smaller amounts from
variows other eskibies/individuals. After the maney had Been Invested, the
Jordaunian ren of ¥ with the investment funds, and wos rot sesn or heard from
again, BIHEIRI zald. BIMEIRT told the mgents that “f they were looking for a
frawt or terrerfst finaneing case, tney should Took into this affair. He
rolated that o6 him, the whole s9fai= seesed ta be & 5% up, He related thas
the Jordaniom wis A close perseas] (ederd-of TARED SURATNAN, SUMATONM
salicived most of the nvestment funds for the precdect, BIHEIRT sald.

BIMEIRT relabed Ehat SIMATDAN and AL-ALT also set up GLOBAL CHEMICA together
e related that SIWATDAN and AL-ALD were close friends. He told the agents
that SUWAIDAN sawf AL-ALI hired the Libyan matioeal to manage GLOBAL CHEMICAL .

Three menths after Al -3 1 approached him abeut inwvestieg in this chemical
product, AL-ALT phened him From Ssud] Arabfe and told Wim that b had Just
spodien with YASSIN AL-0ADI, and QADT wus very Interested in fnvesting in the
product, BIHEIRT safd. BIHEIRT told the sgeats that he helieves AL-AL1 wanted
him Lo enfrse the prospeetive investment and for BMI] e becess Snwoived in
investing o the product at this point, but BIHLIRI told him that he had
aiready given him iz professional opinfon and had nob charged his ming.
BIFEIR] told AL-ALI not to cal) him again about this issus, He related that
hir did not Enow B0 BL-QADT investad im the product or GLOBAL CHEMICAL
BIMEIRI safd that me had never heard of ARCHCON, the CARANIC LETERACY
INGTETUTE (LB}, WOOPERIDGS PROPERTIES, or ABRARSESESS IMVESTMENTS. BIMEIRI
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tald the agents that he was never corticted by AL-GADT regarding the
investmenl.

As another ecasple of bed investing by AL-ALL, BIMEIRT cited an attempted
purchase of & bailding In Nerthern VWirginia by AL=-ALISIRO whereby AL-ALT put
$50,000 down to hold & bu!lding while he obtained the full flrancing. AL-ALT
for whatever reason, BIMEIRI relatad, ended vp losing all 850,000 of the noney
and not obtaining Lhe properiy. BINEIRI told the agents that he spoke to
AL-ALT mmerous Limses while this attespted purchase was cccureing, and be
(ATHEIRTY scmecines had the feeling that the loss of the 'l:ll'l'l'jl' might have been
deliberate on Al -ALI'S perk,

EICIRT told the agents that he was Familiar with SARA, INC. Hs tald thes
that 3ARA waz a conpany in the Unfted Arab Emirates (IME) owned by SALEH
AL-MEGRE (also spelled MUBAREE and<or MUBARKY, BIMETRT related that MUBARE
iz a very well=respected person in the Middle East and was 8 relative of the
former Muftd of the WAE. AIMEIR] told the agents that MUBARC/SARA inuesied
approximabe Ty £150,000 in homes that were bedng built by 8MI n the area of
Maryland. QOIHEIRI related that AL-G80T had nothing to do with SARA, THE.
BIMEIRT told the agents that MUBARK Decame aware of BMI through advertissments
in IsTamic nesspapers and wanted Lo irwbst money with EMI, B HI: I related
that MUBARK was finlshing a Phd in the LMited Stat=s at the time of his
ifvedtnenl Bnd ThAE he Teft te Tue in England shartly after che frwes ok,
MURARK "= irvestrent was returned tohim,

BLHECRL related Ehal SAMEL INTERNATIONAL, THC. w5 o GADT &ompany.  He
believed that SAMEL Invested songy Inbo BMT in 1593

BIHETRT Told the amentz phat he crew BPED EL=KAD]. He stated that he had
anly ®=% him oo bt or three oocasions, bul never foclally or for business.

He related Ehat he had heard thas EL-EAD was tied to the HUSLIM BROTHERFOOD,
He related that EL-FADI was one of the founaers of MAYA, MATT ana TOMA, e
related that EL-¥AB] created and cperated MAMA [phoneticl, which is an Islanic
nofi-prof 1t grganization, He related that SUMAIE BARZINGI, the son of JAMAL,
sl acllive Ir this areanization

BIHETRI refared that he knew OSAMA <ANDIL. He stated that KAMDIL and hls
family were actually on his flight into Dulles From Zurich ard the flight from
Calra into fewrich the day before. BIHEIRT safld that IBRAHIM ana EANDIL were
cloze friends. and were both active in the MUSLIM STUDFKRTS ASSOCATION (M4
BIMEIR] =aid Lhat be was nor 0 clase personal friend of EAMDIL, and that he
did ot speak with him furing their trip, He alsa told the agents that ne did
rat believe bthat FANDIL was a2 member pf the MUSLIM EROTHERSOOD, He tald the
agents thab EANDIL lad irwested approdinmately 25,000 inte BMT and shat EANDTL
had sade & 21190t profic and received his money back.
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BIHEIRI tola the ngents that MAHMLD ABU SALD was o personal financial adviscr
ta King Tdriz Sammi of Morooco and King Falsal of Saudi Arabia. He related
that SAMD mad died im Ehe mid=)9%0s, He related that AR SAUD'S acocoumb of
£500. 000 was returved to hiz «1Ffe at that point. He told the ageats that
SALEH KAMEL wos married to the niece of ASU SALD. BIHEIRI edded that KAMEL is
the mafority cwner of the AL-BARAKAT BANKING GROUS.

BIHEFRT related that he know AL TOTOMIT, JAMAL BARTIRII amd HISHAM
AL-TALIB. He related that ne hod heard noeerows people at the DAR AL-HIJRA
sy that all thres of them worked for the Central Intelligence Agency or the
FEI tue to their eztansive contacte in lrag and the ongeing U. 5. geo-political
interast n Iraqg. When asked, q could nob reiemoer anyone specilically who
znid that they worked for the CIA. He related that these thres individuals
formed the TNTFRMATIONAL. INSTITUTE OF ISLAMIC THOUGHT (IIIT) which s the
-emiment and most respected Tslamfe think tank in the world. He relatad
thakt he firar m=t TOTONIE, BAAPINIL and AL-TALTR through a recting a-vangsd oy
ABL) SAURD in 19T,

ATHFIAT ralated that he nad met TAEA JAEER AL-ALWANI before, bul did not know
Aim w11, He knew him to be 2 sharia aduisor.

EIEIR] told the agent= that he knew SEETRH YOUSOF CARADMGWT very wall, Hi
gaid that MRADANT was an Eoypbian born gleris and ore of the most repecied
clarics in Liwe Middle Eest, He related that GARADAWT i5 o senior MUSLIM
BROTHERHIOD mewmber. BIHEIRD related that he First mel Q0H00AW] in Uakar meay
yrars pgo.  He relaped that GARADANT was the chalrman of the Qatar Bank Sharia
Eaard. BIHEIRT told the agents that GARADANT 15 .virulently anti-American. He
related that GARANEWE does Aot spprove of American eulture or Its forelgn

patbey, BEEIRI told the sgerts thet QARADANT cnoe stoypd at his (BIHEIRISR
hause 0 HesFTEEYT WIED Fi:t Family  BIMEIR] Told the agents that OARADMT
wis—gssethed—Frod Cippd AT Trave s wder a Jatasi passport only

BIHETRI wold the agents that ne ned met SAMT AL-ARTAN on two or three
aoraziors 3t Telamle conferences In the United States.  BIHETRT also met
AT-BRTAN ar EFFIT. HWe firac met A -FRIAN at a Joint FATASTSHA conference in
the late §S80%, He tald the agents that ne was amazed at a presentation on
[slam that AL-ARJAN mawve at the conference. He related that ap was iepressed
with AL-ARTAN'S knowledge of Islam, esprcially beécause he wis & compubsr
programmer by educat Ton.

The iast Eie® ElaE Hp met AL -ARTAN waz five woar: o at a aepinar at cthe IINT
ot Gepve Steeet in Herndoo, Virglnis, where AL-ARIAN gave a 1écturs He rnld
Lhe agents that he kad never interacted with AL-AS1AN en a personal Jeesd [IE:
wigiting coe amoblwe) o busToess lews]. He stabed that AL-aRISN never
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investad money in EMI and he neser managed any money for, or on behal?, of
WL=ARLAM, He sald that he never met RAMATNN ABOALLAH SHALLAH and he did nol
know unt il recently that AL-ARIAN and SHALLAH were senior memders of the
PALESTINIAN [SLAMIC JIMAD (PIJ)}, BIFEIRI zalid that he et AL-ARLAN'S
brother-in-1m, MAZEM EL-NAJMAR, at an Islamic eonference.  He said that
EL-MALIAR was selling books at the conference.

DIHEIRT told the agents that he knew SASSAM FSTWANT wery wall. FRTWANI s
educated 35 an attorney, according to BIHEIRI. He stated that ESTWANI
fnvested SI00,000 In BMI BEDT fn cha 19905 and Tost $25,000 went it went
bankrupt. He related that ESTWAN] f= the director of the DAY AL -HIJRA MOSOLE,
A% well 33 o of k3 founders. BIHEIRI told the agents that ESTWANI Tives on
the sare court az BARZINIL, AL-TALIA mand AL-ALWANT, but he hates thew because
they atlegedly tricked him inte paying sech morg than ho should have for his
house (bhe SAFA GROLF  MEMA LSTATES  butlt and sotd the houses Jecated on 3afa
Court, where ESTWANI 1iwes). He also related that ESTWANT resents TOTORIT,

Al -TALTB and ARRFINJT because they think thal he 1% an idiol,

BTHFTRT related chal he has mel MOUEA A8U MARIDUE on two or three occasions,
a!l at Izlambe confererces. He related that he flrst =t him at an Js'amlc
confermmes in Eanzas Ciby in the sariy (980, EIHFIRT relaced that MARZOUE
gave 2 speech on Uw Jsrael i-Palestinian issme at the conference. He told the
agents that he alse met with MARIIK at a 1584 I5lamic conventlon in New
Jersey. BIMEIRI related that he did not know that MARTOLK was a policieal
Teadar of the HAMAS terrorist organization wntd] MARIOK was arrested in 295
He arated that B mevée met with MARIOW ot either his o MARZOUK 5 bouse.

He told the agents that he did not have o social or business relntionship with
FARALE, HWe told the agents that he never handled any meney for, of o
behalf, of MARJLE and Ehat ne never handied any money for any of RARIOE'S

relatlves.

BIHEIRI told the agents that he hod met &-PED WIUSEEF at the DAR AL-HIDRA, but
that he did mot Enoss Rim personal ly or through business,  He related That
YOUSSEF . Is the dbirector of the UNITED ASSOCIATION PR STUDLES aMD RESESRTH
[LASE) .

BAINFIRI related to the agents that he subTet his M1 office at 5205 Leesbury
Pike Do TELAM 6L FNE ar o certain point dn the Tate 19305 when BM] could wo
tonger afford to pay the rent, Fe relpted that only ene porzen, a Libyan
natianal whate nagme he could ot recall, worked in the 15LAM OALINE office
Ho stated that mo othee entities operatea tn The offiece space,

BIHETRI relatéd Ehat theee BIN LADEN Fomily mesbers lovested momey in i1,
'lvl_.]!"'.ﬂﬂ and .ﬂl.'-‘l..l..lLﬁ.ll BIN LATEM, He related that AEDIRLAH wis the nephew of
OSN BIN LATER and resided in Northarm Virginis wnti)l recently, ASDALAH wos
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the head of the inforsation techrology department for 8IN LADEM CONSTRCTION,
BIFEIRI sald. BIHEIRT tole the agents that ABDLLLAHM BIN LADEN inwested
approx imately £250 000 In EMT AEAL ESTATE LIMITED PARTRERSHIF and the same
amumt i EMT OONSTRUCTION LIMITED PARTAERSHIP, He sadid tha® BEN LADEN mads
spprosimately $T0000 in both projects and withdrew a1l of his money
lappracimately $EA0.000), BIHEIRI stated that GAMAL I would kriow all the
detalls of these tramsactions, Afl{ﬂj fA -IAJ,_. E

He related that ABDIELEH. alen made frwestsents into BT on benalf of NIR and
TW He told the agents PHET-Trcould not Fecall the amount of the
ABEEET twn investments. BIHEIR] related that MT was the sister of 0SAMA BIN
LADEN and JMIM waz his mother, or vice-verza Che could neb recall exastlyl.
Some of the BIN LADEN investopnt in BML was invested n the Cwon K111

ceve lopmant [n Prince Geosrges Coanty, Maryland, BIKEIRT celaned that the BIN
LADEN money Invesced 1a the Dxon HIT developnent was Tost waen the project

eollapsed.

SIFEIRT tala rhe agents that ASELLAH 3IN LADEN was also the {mcorporator and
haad of che WORLD ASSEMELY OF MUSLIM YOUTH CWEMY) in Mortbern Virginia, He
added thar AHEAD TOTONI] was the firct soceetary oF WAMY in Samd! Arabia and

wat alse a foundar of the arganization. H{ F Bﬁﬂﬂﬂ-ﬁﬂ%nﬁ E‘_ﬂ-‘ FE'UE-’{.

BIHEIRT knld Ehe mgents that he had heasd of MERCY INTERNATIOMAGL becsuse he
kriew D PEHSHOW] | who worked thers. He related That PERLT never inwested any
morigy with BMI and that BMI never transfecrsd any morey For, or on behelf of,
MERCY

BIHEIRI Indleated that het was not cortain what The CULTURAL SOCTETY was and -—

surafsed PR AT wiSEBRMSA. e Q AT

:"FII-I-'I'-'I'T tald the aqents that he had heard of & famous Islewnic conference. in--""""_r.fr i

Lugans, Switzecland in 1979, concerning the contemporary prowlens ef Fhe -

Mzl im ummah. He beliesves thic conference took place ab MADA'S home and that b
“ omany high-rankleg individuals in the IsTamfc world took part in chis

l:I'I'FI:'FI.‘I'H:" He related that thiz conference provided a “blus princ” for mch

T - =
-rpq. worldwide Tslaxic movementis] in the ]':IHI.'I': ) ﬂ u_l.%-{n-L';:th_

EIHEIR] told kb= agents that no one at BMI or any of the BHE organizatiors had

oy Eras bank aceounts &t oany time.  When asked by Agent Eane 17 he o 3MI h:,&-J "U.Lﬁl-
any Swiss band accounts. he sald that he/EMD do nob and never ol l‘::-r":-'-*l. El

BTHETRT stated thak he nowrr destroyed any documents associsted with BMI, noe h.;ﬁ,.ﬂf,l.
digd he deztroy any docoments ovgr Lhe course of the last yvear end a half, e e _{1}3
Blze shated Bhat he oo Jomger has any docunents relabing Lo BML, s
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AIFEIRL relaced that FANA7 MUGHTAHA invested 820,000 in BMI In the past and
received that, ples & saal] profit, o returmn, Me related that PLUSHTAEA =
Palestinian “natfonal” who leads prayers at the DOR AL-MIJHA on =8ethin
CCCas 10ns .

BIHEIRT said fw did not krow S00TMAN SL1 ELAY or SULALMA KABRARA (or BABEARAD
AL-ALT,  They are not names used by SULEIMAN AL-ALI, according to BIMEIRI.
BIHEIRD also =aid ke did not know BACHI® KABBARA. BIHEIRI noted that FLAY 4=
a Jewish name, 50 it would nol make sense for AL-ALT to e using that spelling
of his last nane. .

BIHEIRT sald that yhe blggest fnwestors in 8M1 were (9n order of financial
significance) YASSIM QADI, SANABTL AL KHEER, KiMWAIT FINANCE HOUSE, and the SIN
LALENS (ABDLLLAH, MF, and FMAM)

BIFEIRE eald the agents that he is currently working for the Lichtenstelis
Landeshink in furich, Iwitrerland and that his lob i3 to phratn high-net werth
Hiddle Eastern clients. He sald that ke 1% currently residing in Eqypt ang
geve the Celephone nusber 20 10 577 0781 o5 a contect nutber for him.  STHEIR]
told the agents that the purpose of his trip was to perauads his famlly in
Virginia Lo mowe back ko the Middle Fast with him so that he could finenctally
suppert e Family, as that his brother MOHSPED, oho had been supporting thom
dring SLIMAN'S menployment, refused to dp 50 any larger.

BIHEIRI told Agent: Fane and Baloerchax- at the eng of the interview nobt to
contact the Egyptian aucharities 1F they wanted inforsation on hism from
ovErseas. He tald the agentz that 1% chev wanted ‘nfsrmation aboot him, they
shoutd just ask him direckly,

ihe intervies bersinsted ab approxinstely 1850 hrs. and ETHEIRT was then
arrested purswant by a Fedesral naterial witness warrant issued cut of the
Federal Cout for the Faztern District of Vierginia at aoprox imately 1900 hrs.
BIHEIRI wa5 arrested and read his rights by ICE Bgents Ciak and Moldowar .

FICIAL USE BMLY
THIS DOCUMENT J5 LOANED TO vOU FOR OFFICIAL USE DMLY AND REMAINS THE PROPERTY OF
THE 5 CUSTOM: SFRVICE, ANY FURTHER RECKIELT FOR DISCLOSURE OF THIS [OCUMENT OR
ENFOPMATION CONTAIMED HEREIN SHOULD BE REFERRED TD HEADUARTERS, UF (USTOMS
SERVICE TOGETHER WITH A C0RY OF THE FOCIRMENT

oF FT



